
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Emma Young 
Telephone: 01344 352253 
Email: emma.young@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 28 February 2018 

  

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Electoral Review Steering Group 
Thursday 8 March 2018, 3.00 pm 
Function Room, Fifth Floor, Easthampstead House, Town Square, 
Bracknell, RG12 1AQ 

To: The Electoral Review Steering Group 

Councillor Turrell (Chairman), Councillors D Birch, Leake and Mrs Temperton 

cc: Substitute Members of the Committee 

Councillors Allen, Brossard, McLean, Ms Merry and Thompson 

 

ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Resources 
 



 

 

Electoral Review Steering Group 
Thursday 8 March 2018, 3.00 pm 
Function Room, Fifth Floor, Easthampstead House, Town 
Square, Bracknell, RG12 1AQ 

 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. Any 
Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they 
are withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests 
the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the 
interest to the meeting. There is no requirement to withdraw from the 
meeting when the interest is only an affected interest, but the 
Monitoring Officer should be notified of the interest, if not previously 
notified of it, within 28 days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting held on 
24 January 2018. 
 

3 - 8 

4. Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places   

 This report sets out updates to the proposals for changes to Bracknell 
Forest’s polling districts and locations following a comprehensive 
review. 
 
The Steering Group is asked to review the updates to the current 
arrangements and to formulate recommendations for changes to be 
effective from the publication of the revised register on 1 December 
2018.  If an election were to be called prior to publication the existing 
polling districts and places would be used. 
 

9 - 16 

 



 

 

ELECTORAL REVIEW STEERING GROUP 
24 JANUARY 2018 
3.30  - 4.20 PM 

  

 
 
 

Present: 
Councillors D Birch (Vice-Chairman), Leake and Turrell (Chairman) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Mrs Temperton 

 

5. Election of Chairman  

Cllr Chris Turrell was elected as Chairman. 

6. Appointment of Vice Chairman  

Cllr Dale Birch was elected Vice-Chairman 

7. Declarations of interest  

No declarations of interest were received. 

8. Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places  

The Head of Democratic and Registration Services gave some background on the 
review and it was noted that an in depth review was being completed in 2018 as 
there were no scheduled elections. A statutory review was due in 2019 however, this 
would be less detailed and will mean any new arrangements as a result of the review 
could be reviewed following the borough and parish elections in May 2019. 
 
The steering group received a presentation on the Returning Officer’s 
recommendations for each polling district. The current arrangements were reviewed 
and potential changes were proposed.  identified where further investigation was 
required. 
 
Following discussion, the following points were noted and recommendations agreed: 
 
WX, WY – Ascot 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
BA, BC, BB, WM – Binfield with Warfield 
It was noted that the electorate was anticipated to increase in the coming years due 
to housing development in the polling district area and Binfield Memorial Hall would 
not have capacity for more electors. As a result, it was suggested that two areas of 
the new development were designated as separate polling districts. It was suggested 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

that the Amen corner electors could vote at Farley Wood polling station until such 
time as a suitable community facility was built on the site. 
 
In relation to the new housing estate on the former Blue Mountain site the steering 
group supported using Farley Wood as an additional polling station for the interim 
period until a community centre was built at the new housing estate.  It was noted 
that the facility was not expected for some years. The steering group supported that 
the polling district for the Blue Mountain development area should also include the 
Temple Park area. 
 
The steering group supported using Farley Wood as an additional polling station for 
the interim period until a community centre was built at the housing estate on the 
former Blue Mountain site which wasn’t expected for some years. It was noted that it 
must be clear to residents when changes of polling station were interim or permanent 
changes. 
 
The report had recommended the creation of a new polling district for the Woodhurst 
Park development in Warfield which was within the present WM polling district, and 
had proposed that Jocks Lane Pavilion be designated as the polling station for the 
voters in the new polling district. It was proposed that the electors in the existing WM 
polling district would continue to vote at Brownlow Memorial Hall.  The group agreed 
that Cllr Leake would investigate the Jocks Lane Pavilion polling station option with 
Warfield Parish Council and would report back at the next meeting. 

 
The steering group agreed to support using Farley wood as a polling station for 
houses on the Blue Mountain and Temple Park area. It was also agreed that Cllr 
Leake would investigate use of Jocks Lane as a polling station 
 
BE, Bullbrook 
The steering group supported proposals to make Bullbrook Community Centre a 
triple polling station including plans to employ an additional Poll Clerk to direct voters 
on arrival to the correct polling station within the building. 
 
It was noted that car parking was not identified as a particular issue at this station as 
many of the voters lived close by and attended on foot. 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make Bullbrook 
Community Centre a triple polling station. 
 
SP, Central Sandhurst 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
SO, College Town 
It was reported that representations had been made requesting an alternative polling 
station to the one currently held at College Town infant and Junior School. 
 
Officers reported that alternative polling station locations were being investigated and 
would be reported on at the next meeting. 
 
Members reported that previous attempts to use ‘The Spot’ by Sandhurst Town 
Council for a different purpose had highlighted safeguarding concerns which had 
meant the venue was not suitable and it was questioned whether voters would be 
able to gain access to the wider school site. It was confirmed that these concerns 
would be raised with the school. 
 

4



 

 

The steering group agreed to support the proposal to further investigate polling 
station options for the College Town Polling District. 
 
 
BF, Crown Wood 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
CN, Crowthorne 
The impact of development on the TRL site was considered although continued 
voting at Crowthorne Parish Hall was proposed for 2019 due to the limited amount of 
houses that would be built by 2019.. 
 
It was noted that the Great Hollands Pavilion would be a suitable polling station for 
the new residents on the TRL site.  However concerns were raised that the 
community of Crowthorne would prefer residents to vote within the parish and that 
was the area they identified with.  As the Great Hollands Pavilion was outside the 
parish that they did not support the proposed new polling place. 
 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements and agreed to consider the polling station for this polling 
district further at the 2019 review. 
 
BH, BQ, Great Hollands North 
It was noted that representations had been received which suggested consolidating 
polling stations within the main hall at Jennett’s Park Community Centre. However 
the Returning Officer had explained that such a proposal could have created 
administrative difficulties at elections where voters from the different polling districts 
voted for different candidates. 
 
The Steering Group noted that the Returning Officer remained of the view that for as 
long as the current electoral boundaries exist then the present arrangements ensure 
the best administration of all polls. 
 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes in 
respect of the polling stations at Jennett’s Park Community Centre. 
 
BJ, Great Hollands South 
It was noted that in the 2016 alternative arrangements had been trialled at Wooden 
Hill Primary School so that the school could remain open when an election was held, 
however this had proved unpopular with electors and political parties. 
 
Accordingly at subsequent elections the polling station was located in the main hall 
and that the school had closed. 
 
The Steering Group noted that when officers had investigate using Great Holland’s 
Pavilion they had found that the only direct access was a slopping unlit pedestrian 
path, and that any vehicle driver would have a round trip journey of at least 10 
minutes. 
 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
BD, BK, Hanworth 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 

5



 

 

 
BL,BLP, WV, Harmans Water 
It was noted that positive feedback had been received from voters following changes 
to polling district and polling station arrangements made in 2014. 
 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
SQ, CS, Little Sandhurst and Wellington 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
BM, BN Old Bracknell 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
SJ, Owlsmoor 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
BG, BP Priestwood and Garth 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 
 
WG, WQ, Warfield Harvest Ride 
Following questions it was reported that the over 5100 voters presently attending at  
Whitegrove Community Centre and that at national elections there had been 
experience of queues extending outside the building. 
 
It was noted that Warfield Parish Council had proposed moving some electors from 
the WG polling district to vote at Westmorland Park Pavilion rather than Whitegrove 
Community Centre.   
 
The steering group requested Officers to investigate the possibility using 
Westmorland Park Pavilion and to report back to the next meeting.  
 
BT, BW, Wildridings and Central 
It was noted that Wildridings had closed at the General Election in 2017 and several 
representations had been received which suggested looking for an alternative 
location. Having discussed options with the Headteacher, it was reported that an 
arrangement had been reached where the school could be used as a polling station 
whilst the school remains open. 
 
In relation to the polling district for the Town Centre (BT), the Keith Centre had given 
notice that it was no longer available to be used as a polling station.  Suggested 
alternative venues included the former Magistrates Court, Bracknell Town Council 
Offices, Time Square Office and Bracknell Library, Langley Hall at Bracknell Church 
on The Ring, Bracknell and Wokingham College. Officers were investigating potential 
options within the polling district and would report back at the next meeting. 
 
The steering group agreed with the proposals for polling at Wildridings Primary 
School whilst the school remained open. 
 
WN,WP, WS, WZ – Winkfield and Cranbourne 
The steering group agreed to support the proposal to make no changes to the 
current arrangements. 

6



 

 

 
Following questions it was noted that polling stations in the Wokingham 
Parliamentary constituency were not part of this review however Wokingham Council 
were starting their own review soon. 
 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



 

TO: ELECTORAL REVIEW STEERING GROUP 
8 MARCH 2018 

  
 

POLLING DISTRICT AND POLLING PLACE REVIEW 2018 
Director of Resources – Democratic and Registration 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 Following the first meeting of the Electoral Review Steering Group on 24 January 
2018 Members agreed to a number of recommendations presented by Officers as 
part of the statutory review process set out in the Electoral Registration and 
Administration Act 2013. These decisions are formally recorded in the minutes of that 
meeting. 

1.2 Officers also identified particular polling areas where changing circumstances and 
population growth meant that alterations to existing arrangements needed to be 
considered by members. 

1.3 As approved by members at the last meeting of the Electoral Review Steering Group 
Officers have investigated the areas identified and final recommendations are set out 
below. 

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That members review the recommendations of the Returning Officer as detailed in 
Annexe A. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

3.1 To complete the review of all polling districts and polling places within the borough 
and formalise the conclusion of this review. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 All the alternative options considered to update the scheme are set out in Annexe A 
to the report. 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

5.1 Supporting information remains as detailed in previous report. 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 

Borough Solicitor 

6.1 The relevant legal implications were detailed and addressed within the last report.  

Borough Treasurer 

6.2 The establishment of additional Polling Stations will involve costs for staffing and hire 
of accommodation.  

9

Agenda Item 4



 

6.3 Any increased costs at the time of an election would be realised by the body 
responsible for paying for the particular election. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.4 Equalities Impact Assessment is integrated within the review of each proposal to the 
scheme. 

 
6.5 Polling Stations are regularly reviewed to ensure maximum accessibility and various 

methods of voting are promoted to enable access for all. Polling equipment and 
facilities are available in every Station to assist voters with disabilities. 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.6 Failure to complete the review would result in the Council being in breach of its 
statutory duty. 

Other Officers 

6.7 None 

7 CONSULTATION 

 Principal Groups Consulted 

7.1 As detailed in previous report. 

 Method of Consultation 

7.2 As detailed in previous report. 

 Representations Received 

7.3 Representations from the Electoral Review Steering Group were received and taken 
into consideration during the drafting of this report and supplementary Annexes. 

Background Papers 

None 

 
Contact for further information 
Philip Sadler, Electoral Services - 01344 35140 
Philip.sadler@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

10

mailto:Philip.sadler@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Annexe A 
 

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES  
 

FOLLOW – UP PROPOSALS FROM RETURNING OFFICER 
 

LISTED BY BOROUGH WARD 

 

1 BA – Binfield with Warfield 

Officers investigated potential options to address the issues raised in the previous 
report.   

A visit to St Marks Church found that although the building itself would be an ideal 
polling station, the limited onsite parking facilities would require the vast majority of  
electors attending by car to park at Popes Meadow car park and then walk along St 
Marks Road before crossing to the Church.  The footpath was narrow and poorly lit 
resulting in Officers discounting the Church as a venue. 

Officers met with representatives of Newbold College and were shown various rooms 
that could be used as a polling station.  The representative from the College 
emphasised that they were keen to be an active part of the local community, and that 
its location was well known to local residents.  

Officers assessed the rooms visited and felt that Salisbury Hall, which could 
accommodate up to 400 seats, was an ideal location, with capacity for more than one 
polling station. The site offers easy access for pedestrians from St Marks Road and 
ample free car parking. 

The Returning Officer also proposes the division of the existing ‘BA’ polling district to 
create a new polling district titled ‘BI’ comprising the southern part of the current ‘BA’ 
polling district, namely the temple park area, London Road to Murrell Hill Lane up to 
Foxley Lane and across to the Roebuck pub across to the Binfield Road roundabout. 
This proposal is shown in Annexe B, Fig.1. 

The partition would result in the new polling district having 1,941 electors (using the 
current register) with further capacity to absorb new electors moving onto the Blue 
Mountain development as properties are occupied. 

At the previous meeting Members supported the establishment of three polling 
stations at Farley Wood Community Centre to accommodate electors from BB and 
the proposed BI and BAC polling districts. However, during their investigations 
Officers determined that the facilities available at Newbold College and the flexibility 
of the site to absorb further elector growth meant that it would be better to establish a 
new polling station on this site for electors in the proposed  BI polling district. 

The revised ‘BA’ polling district would therefore contain 2,707 electors (using the 
current electorate). 

For the Amen Corner development it is recommended to create a new polling district 
(suggested code ‘BAC’ – Binfield Amen Corner) and that the polling station for that 
area is designated as Farley Wood Community Centre.  The polling district would be 
accommodated in the Main Hall at the building with the voters for the BB polling 
district continuing to attend in the meeting room as they currently do. 

With regards to the WM polling district Cllr Leake advised that the proposal to use 
Jocks Lane Pavilion as a polling station for the Woodhurst Park development had 
been discussed following the first meeting of the steering group and was not 
favoured by Binfield Councillors.  

11



In light of this information, it is proposed that no changes are made to the current 
arrangements for the ‘WM’ polling district and that all the voters concerned continue 
to vote at Brownlow Memorial Hall. 

The proposed changes to the polling districts can be seen in Annexe B and would 
result in the following allocation of polling stations:  

Polling 
District 

Polling 
Station 
Electors 

Polling Place 
Number of 

Polling Stations 

BA 2,251 
Binfield Memorial Hall, Terrace Road 
South, Binfield, Bracknell RG42 4DJ 

2 - Existing 

BI 1,566 
Newbold College, St Marks Road, 
Binfield, Popeswood, RG42 4AN 

1 – New Station 

BAC N/A 
Farley Wood Centre, Turnpike Road, 

Binfield, Bracknell  RG42 1FW 
1 – New Station 

BB 1,370 
Farley Wood Centre, Turnpike Road, 

Binfield, Bracknell  RG42 1FW 
1 - Existing 

WM 708 
Brownlow Memorial Hall, 7 County 

Lane, Warfield, RG42 6AB 
1 - Existing 

 

1.1 Returning Officer’s Recommendations: 
 

1) Separate the southern area of the ‘BA’ polling district into a new polling district to 
be called ‘BI’. 

2) Separate the Amen Corner development from the ‘BA’ polling district and creating 
a new polling district to be called ‘BAC’. 

3) No changes to be made to either polling districts ‘BB’ or ‘WM’, retaining existing 
polling arrangements. 

4) That Newbold College is designated as the polling station for the ‘BI’ new polling 
district. 

5) That Farley Wood Community Centre is designated as the polling station for 
polling district ‘BAC’. 

6) That Binfield Memorial Hall remains the polling station for the revised ‘BA’ polling 
district. 

7) That Farley Wood Community centre remains the polling station for the 
unchanged ‘BB’ polling district.  

2 ‘SO’ – College Town 

In an effort to reduce reliance on College Town Infants School, Officers visited 
Sandhurst Secondary school to investigate the suitability of either the main sports 
hall or ‘The Spot’ for use as a polling station. 

At the previous meeting of the steering group Members had raised the need to 
consider the safeguarding implications of using the school as a polling station. 
Officers investigated and, the school bursar has confirmed that electors accessing 
the main sports hall would not need to cross onto school property itself. 

Conversations held with the secondary school raised the point that the main sports 
hall is used for exams which do regularly occur each May. However, the exact 
timetable is not released until late December each year. 

12



The longer term status of ‘The Spot’ remains ambiguous so Officers are not able to 
make any recommendations about this site as part of this review. 

2.1 Returning Officer’s Recommendations: 

1) Designating the main sports hall at Sandhurst Secondary School as the default 
polling station for electors in polling district ‘SO’. 
 

2) However, should a scheduled exam clash with a polling day the existing 
arrangements at College Town Infants School would be reinstated. 

3 WG & WQ - Warfield Harvest Ride 

In the previous report Officers highlighted concerns around elector capacity at 
Whitegrove Community Centre and it was agreed by Members that Officers should 
investigate Westmorland Park Pavilion. 

Officers visited the Pavilion and established that it has good car park facilities, with 
the building providing easy access.  It had good facilities for staff and could 
accommodate two polling stations. 

Officers recommend revising polling district ‘WG’ by moving the roads in the areas 
commonly referred to as the “county road name estate” and ‘Shakespearian estate’ 
into a new polling district ‘WE’ – Warfield East. 

Using the current register, this would result in the reduced WG polling district having 
1,996 electors and the new ‘WE’ polling district 2,485. 

The voters for the revised ‘WG’ polling district would continue to vote at Warfield 
Community Centre, alongside the ‘WQ’ electors. The ‘WG’ voters would vote in at a 
single polling station in the Main Hall with the ‘WQ’ voters continuing to attend at The 
Garden Room in the building. 

For the proposed ‘WE’ polling district it is recommended that Westmorland Pavilion is 
designated as the polling station, with two polling stations to be deployed. 

3.1 Returning Officer’s Recommendations: 

1) Create a new polling district named ‘WE’ by splitting the existing ‘WG’ polling 
district into two areas. Fig. 2 in Annexe B shows the newly proposed areas. 

2) To serve electors in the new ‘WE’ polling district the Retuning Officer further 
recommends the designation of Westmoreland Pavilion as the polling station. 

3) Voters in the revised ‘WG’ polling district continue to vote at Warfield Community 
centre. 

4) Voters in the unchanged ‘WQ’ polling district continue to vote at Warfield 
Community centre. 

 

4 BT & BW Wildridings and Central 

Following the decision by the Kerith Centre to no longer host the polling station for 
the ‘BT’ polling district, Officers undertook visits to a number of potential locations. 
These included: Bracknell Football Club, Bracknell Town Council offices, Bracknell 
Library, Langley Hall on the Ring Road, St John’s Ambulance Hall on Crowthorne 
Road North and the former Magistrates Court. 

The difficulties around providing free car parking at any replacement venue were 
heavily considered by Officers when evaluating the suitability of each potential 
location. However, since the redevelopment and opening of the new town centre the 
availability of free car parking in the town centre has been considerably reduced. 

13



Useful discussions were held with staff at Bracknell Library.  Some revision to the 
layout of the basement area of the building is scheduled to be undertaken in the 
coming year and Officers will revisit the building after the completion of the changes 
to evaluate whether it could be a future long term polling station for the town centre 
polling district. 

Having considered the various sites, Officers believe that the best present location 
would be the former magistrate’s court.  It has been established with the Police that 
on polling day that polling staff can park in the police station car park, ensuring that 
staff only undertake a short walk with ballot box(es) and associated equipment. While 
there is no free car parking for electors nearby  

Officers have noted that additional external lighting will be required to illuminate the 
path leading to the access and egress point for voters located at the side of the 
former magistrate’s court and these will be provided.   

4.1 Returning Officer’s Recommendations:  

1) For the 2019 local elections it is recommended that the former Magistrates Court 
be designated as the polling station for ‘BT’ electors.  

2) For all subsequent polls it is proposed to designate Bracknell Library as the polling 
station, subject to a re-evaluation after planned renovation work. 

 

 

14



Annexe B 
 

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 
 

Fig: 1 Binfield with Warfield 
 

15



 
 
Fig: 2: Warfield Harvest Ride 
 

 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places
	Annexe A - Follow Up Recommendations FINAL
	Annexe B - Proposed Electoral Maps FINAL


